
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals  
Remote Meeting Instructions for August 25, 2020 Meeting 

 
In order to comply with all health orders and State guidelines to stop the spread of the COVID-19 
Coronavirus, no physical location, including the City Council Chambers, will be set up for 
viewing or participating in this meeting.  
 
You can view the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting by following the instructions below to watch 
the YouTube live stream. By utilizing this option to view the meeting, you will not be able to 
provide live input during the meeting. To provide live input, see the “Real Time” instructions near 
the bottom of this page. 
 

 From your laptop or computer, click the following link or enter it manually into your web 
browser: (www.youtube.com/CityofGreeley) 

 Clicking the link above will take you to the City of Greeley’s YouTube channel 
 Once there, you will be able to view the meeting 

 
Citizen input and public comment for items appearing on this agenda as 

public hearing / quasi-judicial are valuable and welcome 
 
There are several options for those who are interested in participating and sharing public 
comments: 
 
E-mail – Submit to cd_admin_team@greeleygov.com 
All comments submitted by e-mail will be read into the record at the appropriate points during the 
meeting in real time. Comments can be submitted up to and throughout the meeting. 
 
Traditional Mail – Address to Zoning Board of Appeals, 1100 10th Street, Greeley, CO 80631 
All written comments must be received no later than the day of the meeting. Written comments 
received by mail will also be read into the record in real time. 
 
Real Time – Click here 
Clicking the link above will give you access to the live meeting via Zoom Webinar where you will 
become a virtual audience member and be able to provide input during a public hearing using the 
chat or raise hand features. 
 
Please visit the Planning Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals web page at 
https://greeleygov.com/government/b-c/boards-and-commissions/planning to view and download 
the contents of the agenda packet. You are also welcome to call the Planning office at 970-350-
9780 if you have any other questions or require special accommodations to attend a virtual 
hearing.  

1

http://www.youtube.com/CityofGreeley
mailto:cd_admin_team@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.zoom.us/j/98241485414
https://greeleygov.com/government/b-c/boards-and-commissions/planning


      

 

 
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Agenda 

 
August 25, 2020 

1:15 p.m.  
 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on May 12, 2020 

 
III. A public hearing to consider a variance request to allow for up to a 12-foot tall 

retaining wall 
 
Case No.:  VAR2020-0014 
Project Name:  City Center West Residential Subdivision, 2nd Filing, Retaining Wall 
Applicant:  Miller Wall Co. 
Location: North of 7th Street , south of 4th Street, west of 63rd Avenue, east of 

66th Avenue 
Presenter: Brittany Hathaway, Planner III 
 

IV. Adjournment 
 
 
 

 
Please visit www.greeleygov.com for more information about the City’s 

response to protect public and employee health & safety 
 
 
 

2

http://www.greeleygov.com/


 

Zoning Board of Appeals Proceedings                                                      1                                                         May 12, 2020 
 

  
 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
Proceedings 

 

May 12, 2020 

 

Remote Hearing 

(Via YouTube) 

1:15 p.m. 
 

I.         Call to Order 

 

Chair Yeater called the meeting to order at 1:15 p.m. Commissioners Schulte, Andersen, 
Modlin, Briscoe, Romulo, and Franzen were present. Chair Yeater read the instructions for 
conducting a remote hearing. 

 
II. Approval of minutes for meeting held on November 12, 2019 

 
Commissioner Andersen moved to approve the minutes dated November 12, 2019. 
Commissioner Romulo seconded. Motion carried 7-0.  

 
III. A public hearing to consider a variance request for a 70-foot building on a 185-acre 

parcel located in a Residential Low Density zone district where the maximum allowed 

height is 30 feet 

 
Case No.:  VAR2020-0007 
Project Name:  Aims Welcome Center Height Variance  
Applicant:  Ryan Nichols, on behalf of Aims Community College 
Location: 5401 20th Street  
Presenter:  Kira Stoller, Planner II 
 
Kira Stoller addressed the Board and identified the project as a request by Aims Community 
College for a building height variance. Ms. Stoller reported that the applicant is requesting a 
height variance for a 70-foot tall building in a Residential Low Density (R-L) zone district. 
She advised that Aims has been in operation for nearly 50 years and is looking to expand its 
campus amenities. Other 3-story structures currently exist on the site. Ms. Stoller added that 
the proposed welcome center will be located at the northeast corner of 20th Street and 50th 
Avenue and will include various functions such as admissions, financial aid, and advising.  

  

3



 

Zoning Board of Appeals Proceedings                                                      2                                                         May 12, 2020 
 

She added that the welcome center will also house a 1700-seat auditorium and ballroom 
which will serve as a graduation venue and gathering place for the community. 
 
Ms. Stoller presented a map showing the location of the Aims campus and described the 
surrounding zoning and uses. She noted that the property on the southwest corner of 20th 
Street and 50th Avenue previously approved for multi-family housing remains vacant. 
Ms. Stoller advised that the campus is split zoned, with the welcome center to be built 
within the R-L (Residential Low Density) zone. 
 
Ms. Stoller presented site data and advised that the maximum structure height within an R-L 
zone district is 35 feet, with performance option #5, which allows a building height to be 
increased by up to five feet (one foot for every three feet of additional setback provided). 
Ms. Stoller pointed out the section of rooftop access which measures 70 feet, adding that the 
parapet wall is 62 feet in height. She also presented a photo rendering of the proposed 
welcome center which provided a good idea of what the building will look like from 20th 
Street. Ms. Stoller also presented photographs of the existing campus and the site selected 
for the welcome center. 
 
The approval criteria applicable to the request were then provided by Ms. Stoller, who noted 
that the proposal meets two of the five consideration criteria found in Section 18.22.040(f) 
as well as all three mandatory criteria found in Section 18.22.040(g). Notices were mailed to 
property owners within 500 feet of the site and signs were posted on the site.  
 
Ms. Stoller received two e-mail inquiries that arrived after publication of the staff report. 
The first was from Fred Otis, Otis & Beddingfield, 1812 56th Avenue. The second was from 
Susan Klemme. Both e-mails are attached to these minutes and are made part of the record. 
 
Staff determined that the request meets consideration criteria 1 and 5 as well as mandatory 
criteria 1, 2 and 3 and recommends approval. Ms. Stoller invited questions from the Board. 
 
Commissioner Andersen noted the neighbor’s concern about light pollution and asked 
whether that had been addressed when considering the additional building height. 
Ms. Stoller reported that the site plan is still under review and that staff had received a 
photometric plan and will make sure that it meets all base code standards.  
 
Based upon the various zone districts on the campus, Commissioner Romulo asked whether 
there would be proposals in the future to rezone other areas of the campus. Ms. Stoller 
indicated that she was unaware of Aims having a desire to rezone the campus, but 
mentioned that any other zoning designation would still require a height variance to allow 
for the construction of a 70-foot tall building. 
 
Commissioner Schulte asked that in the event the variance request is approved, whether it 
would be contingent on the specific architectural plan presented or whether it could be 
replaced with a structure less conducive to the setting. Ms. Stoller advised that approval of 
the variance would allow any type of building design and would not necessarily be 
connected to what is being proposed now. She added that any structure would need to  

  

4



 

Zoning Board of Appeals Proceedings                                                      3                                                         May 12, 2020 
 

remain under the 70-foot height limit. Upon question by Chair Yeater, Ms. Stoller indicated 
that a motion could specify that approval was contingent upon the specific plan presented. 
 
Ryan Nichols, architect with Hord, Coplan, Macht, 1800 Wazee Street, Suite 450, Denver, 
Colorado, addressed the Board on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Nichols reported that he has 
been working with Aims on this project for the past year. He thanked the Board for 
considering the application. Mr. Nichols reported that the current welcome center has been 
in place since 1991 and that the college has grown and outgrown the needs of the existing 
space. According to Mr. Nichols, input was solicited from students, staff and other 
community members. Mr. Nichols described the various spaces that will be available for 
student activities as well as other community events and highlighted the capacity of each 
space. In response to the email from Susan Klemme, who hoped that Aims is not trying to 
compete with UNC, Mr. Nichols reported that Aims and UNC have always had a great 
working relationship and that this facility will be available for use by UNC as well as other 
community partners.   
 
Upon question by Commissioner Schulte, Mr. Nichols advised that the auditorium will 
accommodate 1700 people when full and can be converted into smaller meeting spaces. The 
banquet room will accommodate 800 seated persons and can also be converted into smaller 
meeting areas. 
 
Commissioner Briscoe asked for clarification about the height of the parapet wall and the 
mechanical screen. Mr. Nichols reported that the mechanical screen on the roof is at 68 feet 
and the top of the parapet wall is 62 feet. Additionally, the mechanical screen is set back 
10-15 feet from the parapet. Commissioner Briscoe noted that grading work has begin and 
the project seems to be underway. He was curious about the timing of seeking approval 
while construction has begun. Mr. Nichols advised that during the site plan review process 
75 percent plans were submitted around the end of November and discussions with city staff 
had begun before then. He added that the grading plan has been able to move separately 
from this approval.  
 
Chair Yeater pointed out that the plan set is dated March 27, 2020 and asked whether it was 
the final plan set. He asked whether Mr. Nichols saw a problem noting a specific plan set in 
the motion for a height variance. Mr. Nichols stated that the plan documents are separate 
from the construction documents, but as far as the site plan review set, what has been 
presented is current. He expressed no objection to the Board including language in the 
proposed motion referencing the site plans.  
 
Commissioner Andersen asked whether the applicant had any concerns about the uncertain 
financial future and was confident that the building would come to fruition. She also asked 
whether it would create a limitation if the Board limited the approval to the plans being 
presented. Mr. Nichols advised that Greeley has been fortunate to have a funding stream set 
up for Aims and added that the funds for this project had been allocated and no future 
funding would be required. He added that in many ways, the timing of this project is good as 
it allows people to know what they will be working on a year from now. 
 

  

5



 

Zoning Board of Appeals Proceedings                                                      4                                                         May 12, 2020 
 

Chair Yeater opened the public hearing at 1:48 p.m.  There being no comment, the public 
hearing was closed at 1:51 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Andersen moved that based on the application received and the preceding 
analysis, the Zoning Board of Appeals finds that the requested variance to allow for a 
70-foot tall building, where the maximum structure height allowed is 35 feet, within a 
Residential Low Density zone district complies with Section 18.22.040(f), Items 1 and 5 and 
Section 18.22.040(g), Items 1, 2 and 3 of the Development Code; and therefore, approves 
the request, with the additional requirement that the plans submitted to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals today would be included for the variance and if those plans, or a similar plan, are 
not followed, the variance would not apply. Commissioner Briscoe seconded. Motion 
carried 7-0.  
 

IV. Staff Report 

 
Brad Mueller, Community Development Director, thanked the Board members for their 
flexibility in conducting the meeting remotely using Zoom meeting technology. He briefly 
shared the City’s larger vision for continuing operations during the upcoming weeks and 
months and stated that he will be asking the Planning Commission and Zoning Board of 
Appeals to follow City Council’s lead in reopening to live hearings. 
 
Mr. Mueller reported that construction activity has continued over the past couple of 
months, making inspections an essential service. He added that development review has also 
continued. He noted a forum for realtors and developers to be held on May 20 where 
information will be provided about building permits, development, and other topics. At that 
time, staff will also begin to introduce a development impact fee study that has been 
undertaken by the City. Mr. Mueller also reported that the department has undertaken an 
update to the current Development Code and is close to finalizing a contract with a 
consultant who will be working with staff over the next 18 months. He added that various 
topical areas of the Code update would be presented to the Planning Commission throughout 
the process. 
 
Mr. Mueller added to the response by Ms. Stoller regarding the question about rezoning at 
Aims Community College. In addition to Ms. Stoller’s response, Mr. Mueller stated that 
staff has received a preliminary indication from Aims seeking to rezone the existing 
Residential Estate zoning on much of the property. He added that Residential Estate allows 
for institutional uses and that institutional use also falls under any of the zone districts.   
 
Commissioner Modlin asked about the status of the Lake Bluff property near 95th Avenue 
and Highway 34. He sked whether there would soon be a bond issue on the ballot or whether 
it had been postponed. Mr. Mueller stated that he was not aware that a bond issue was on a  
timeline as a ballot question in the spring. Planning Manager, Mike Garrott, added that he 
was also unaware of a spring election. He reported that the project is in the second phase and 
being defined as it moves forward. Mr. Mueller advised that an element of the development 
is tied to city infrastructure, adding that the City continues to move along with design and 
the ultimate construction as a regional improvement not necessarily tied to the Lake Bluff 
project.  
 

6



 

Zoning Board of Appeals Proceedings                                                      5                                                         May 12, 2020 
 

V.  Adjournment  

 
Chair Yeater adjourned the Zoning Board of Appeals hearing at 2:04 p.m.   
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Justin Yeater, Chair 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Brad Mueller, Secretary 

 

7



From: Fred Otis
To: Kira Stoller
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: VAR2020-0007
Date: Sunday, May 10, 2020 7:43:39 AM

Kira, thanks for sending the link.  The building is beautiful and its location won't likely block anyone’s
view of the mountains.  Fred
 
Fred L. Otis
West Greeley Law Center, LLC

1812 56th Avenue
Greeley, CO  80634
970-330-6700
fotis@nocoattorneys.com
 

From: Kira Stoller <Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com> 
Sent: Thursday, May 7, 2020 8:22 AM
To: Fred Otis <fotis@nocoattorneys.com>
Subject: RE: VAR2020-0007
 
Hi Fred,
 
If the variance request were approved, it would only apply to the proposed welcome center
building.  Any future structures proposed on the site would be required to submit another variance
application if they wish to exceed the height limit of the zone district. 
 
If you want additional information regarding the specifics of the welcome center project, you can
view the staff report here: http://greeleygov.com/docs/default-source/community-
development/planning-commission/agendas/05-12-20-zba-agenda-packet.pdf.
 
Thanks,

Kira Stoller
Planner II
Community Development |Planning and Zoning

1100 10th Street, 2nd Floor
Greeley, CO 80631
970-336-4050 |Kira.Stoller@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.com/
 

8

mailto:fotis@nocoattorneys.com
mailto:Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com
http://greeleygov.com/docs/default-source/community-development/planning-commission/agendas/05-12-20-zba-agenda-packet.pdf
http://greeleygov.com/docs/default-source/community-development/planning-commission/agendas/05-12-20-zba-agenda-packet.pdf
mailto:kira.stoller@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.com/


From: Fred Otis <fotis@nocoattorneys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2020 5:48 PM
To: Kira Stoller <Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: VAR2020-0007
 
Kira,
If the application is approved, is Aims allowed to only build the building on the site you pointed out,
or could they in the future build to 70 feet?
 
Thanks for your help.  Fred
 
Fred L. Otis
West Greeley Law Center, LLC

1812 56th Avenue
Greeley, CO  80634
970-330-6700
fotis@nocoattorneys.com
 
 

From: Kira Stoller <Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 6, 2020 2:20 PM
To: Fred Otis <fotis@nocoattorneys.com>
Subject: RE: VAR2020-0007
 
Hi Fred,
 
I realized after the notices went out that I should have better noted where the welcome center
building is proposed to be located.  I have attached a revised map for you reference.  Let me know if
you have additional questions.
 
Thanks,

Kira Stoller
Planner II
Community Development |Planning and Zoning

1100 10th Street, 2nd Floor
Greeley, CO 80631
970-336-4050 |Kira.Stoller@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.com/
 

9

mailto:fotis@nocoattorneys.com
mailto:Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com
mailto:fotis@nocoattorneys.com
mailto:Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com
mailto:fotis@nocoattorneys.com
mailto:kira.stoller@greeleygov.com
https://greeleygov.com/


From: Fred Otis <fotis@nocoattorneys.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, May 06, 2020 11:28 AM
To: Kira Stoller <Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] VAR2020-0007
 
Kira,
The map that is attached to the referenced application by Aims, is quite large.  A building I own is at

West Greeley Law Center is at 1812 56th Avenue.  I am curious where the 70 foot Welcome Center
building will be located relative to my property?  Can you tell me?
 
Fred L. Otis
Partner
Otis & Bedingfield, LLC

1812 56th Avenue
Greeley, CO  80634
970-330-6700
fotis@nocoattorneys.com
www.nocoattorneys.com
 
THIS EMAIL IS CONFIDENTIAL: The information contained in this email or any attachment hereto is
confidential.  It may also be privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, notify the sender by
return email and immediately delete this email.
 
 

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use
by the recipient and others authorized to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that
any disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly
prohibited and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by
Mimecast Ltd, an innovator in Software as a Service (SaaS) for business. Providing a safer and more
useful place for your human generated data. Specializing in; Security, archiving and compliance. To find out
more Click Here.

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking

on any links or attachments.
 

 
CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking

on any links or attachments.
 

10

mailto:fotis@nocoattorneys.com
mailto:Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com
mailto:fotis@nocoattorneys.com
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.nocoattorneys.com_&d=DwMFaQ&c=pbFUQEEuORr9SHVU_qyyLQ8fMT0iT3TCyq8KIT8w5SE&r=xkOThMej1OB-k4LD9pdy7GixcduKVfQVC9n1x4swNB0&m=Luz8R66hEMebsVBSsVC0-HgbG8hi-k-oUozuzNR4TJc&s=AzZh_GN77bLXxaqZ9RdHnACBUu5dYmDsg-GaL3shtA0&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.mimecast.com_products_&d=DwMFaQ&c=pbFUQEEuORr9SHVU_qyyLQ8fMT0iT3TCyq8KIT8w5SE&r=xkOThMej1OB-k4LD9pdy7GixcduKVfQVC9n1x4swNB0&m=Luz8R66hEMebsVBSsVC0-HgbG8hi-k-oUozuzNR4TJc&s=ypWMn8y9ZfJsLg_WysMZuqOcyY81Gow6MHBU7BCWqbU&e=


From: Susan Klemme
To: Kira Stoller
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Aims welcome center
Date: Friday, May 08, 2020 12:06:19 PM

I live on the west side of Aims Community College and walk often through the campus.  It is a very
impressive well kept campus.  
  
   When I first saw ground work being done for the proposed building I asked a couple, "What are they
building now?".  They responded "A welcome center".  We all agreed "A welcome center???"  Then I saw
a drawing of the proposed building and thought " That's huge".   I did go online and read about the need
for some added facilities.  I guess the need has been confirmed and there is no stopping this project now.
    I have never been a student at Aims, but am impressed with its small college feel...and appearance.  I
believe in that old saying "Bigger Isn't always Better". The location sits on one of the highest spots in
Greeley and now this proposed building will be very noticible.  Plus the lighting.  Apparently the architects
believe in keeping their buildings well lighted.  For example the recent P.E Building looks like a prison at
night its so well lit.  I would think this would be costly and it just spoils my view ..HA.  Something to think
about.
     I think community colleges fill an important need for those furthering their education.  I just hope Aims
Community College is not trying to compete with UNC.  

                                                                                              Sincerely, Sue Klemme

CAUTION: This email is from an external source. Ensure you trust this sender before clicking
on any links or attachments.

11

mailto:sueklem2@yahoo.com
mailto:Kira.Stoller@Greeleygov.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

12



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS SUMMARY 

 
ITEM: Request for a variance from the maximum allowable wall retaining 

wall height. 

CASE NO: VAR2020-0014 

PROJECT: City Center West Residential Subdivision, 2nd Filing, Retaining 
Wall 

 
LOCATION: North of 7th Street, south of 4th Street, west of 63rd Avenue, and 

east of 66th Avenue 

APPLICANT: Miller Wall Company Inc. – On behalf of CCW Development 
LLC 

CASE PLANNER: Brittany Hathaway, Planner III 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS HEARING DATE:  August 25, 2020 
 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FUNCTION: 
Review the proposal for compliance with Chapter 18.22, Variances, of the City of Greeley 
Development Code and approve, approve with conditions, continue the application for future 
consideration, or deny the request.  
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Greeley is considering a variance request by Miller Wall Company on behalf of 
CCW Development LLC, to allow for up to a 12-foot tall retaining wall (see Attachment C – 
Applicant Narrative). 

A. REQUEST 
Approval of a variance from Section 18.52.035(d)(10)(c) Any retaining wall proposed to 
exceed a height of six (6) feet shall require approval of a variance under the provisions of 
Chapter 18.22, Variances.   

The applicant is requesting a variance to allow for up to a 12-foot tall retaining wall located 
within Outlot C, along the rear yards of lots 149-159 of the City Center West Residential 
Subdivision, Second Filing. The Development Code requires a variance for walls exceeding 
6 feet in height if visible from a right-of-way or residential use. As the retaining wall is 
located adjacent to residential rear yards, a variance is required. 

13



The requested height variance of 6 feet is due to steep natural grading adjacent to the 
Pumpkin Ridge Natural Area, Sheep Draw, and proximity to the 500-year floodplain. 

In order for the platted lots to be developed within the designated lot constraints and to align 
with the 66th Avenue block face, a retaining wall is needed to allow the subject lots to be 
graded accordingly.  

B. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval 

 
C. LOCATION 

The subject site is located north of 7th Street, south of 4th Street, west of 63rd Avenue, and 
east of 66th Avenue (see Attachment A – Vicinity Map). 

 
Abutting Zoning:      North: Residential High Density (R-H) with a DCMP  

  South:  Residential High Density (R-H) with a DCMP 
  East:    Conservation District (C-D) 
  West:   Residential High Density (R-H) with a DCMP 

 
Surrounding Land Uses: North:  Platted single family lots under construction 

South:  Platted single family lots under construction 
  East:    Pumpkin Ridge Natural Area and Sheep Draw Trail 
  West:   Platted single family lots under construction 
 

Site Characteristics: The subject area is vacant land with steep natural grading along the 
rear of platted lots 14-159, adjacent west to the Pumpkin Ridge 
Natural Area and the Sheep Draw Trail.   

D. BACKGROUND 
The subject site was platted as part of the City Center West Residential Subdivision, 1st Filing, 
recorded on November 14, 2019 as part of Tract A. It was re-platted with City Center West 
Residential Subdivision, 2nd Filing, recorded on January 29, 2020. This subdivision created 146 
single family detached lots, 130 multi-family units, and a 6-acre neighborhood park and trail 
system.  

A grading permit for grading of the overall site, including areas adjacent to affected lots 149-159, 
was approved by Public Works on January 7, 2020. This grading request is the final step prior to 
building permit for the development of the lots. While the approved grading permit included the 

14



retaining wall, a separate building permit is required. However, the wall was constructed without 
an approved building permit or land use approval. 

E. APPROVAL CRITERIA 
Variances:  Section 18.22.040 of the Development Code states that:  When practical 
difficulties, unnecessary hardship, or results inconsistent with the general purpose of this 
Code occur through the strict and literal interpretation and enforcement of the provisions 
thereof, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall have the authority, subject to the provisions of 
this Chapter, to grant such conditions as it may determine to be necessary to be in 
conformance with the intent of the Land Use Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan.  In 
general, the power to authorize a variance from the terms of this Code shall be exercised 
only under peculiar and exceptional circumstances.  The Board may grant a variance as 
applied for, or a variance constituting a reduction thereof.  The Board may attach conditions 
in granting a variance, which conditions shall be reasonably related to promoting 
compatibility with the surrounding area and land uses.   
 
The review criteria found in Section 18.22.040 (f) 1-5 and (g) 1-3 of the Greeley 
Development Code shall be used by the Zoning Board of Appeals when considering all 
variance requests.   

 
Consideration Criteria:  Development Code Section 18.22.040 (f) 
In taking action on a variance request, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall consider any 
comments received from the public and the applicant and the staff recommendation. The 
Board shall also consider if the proposed variance meets the following criteria in taking 
action to approve, approve with conditions, deny, or table the application for future 
consideration: 
 
1. Any variance granted shall be the minimum needed to accommodate or 

alleviate the difficulty or hardship involved.   
 
Staff Comment:  The existing site topography has a significant drop-off along the 

eastern boundary of Sheep Draw within the Pumpkin Ridge 
Natural Area. There is also a 500-year floodplain that encumbers 
the eastern boundary of the site. In order to limit disturbance in 
these areas, a wall with portions exceeding 6-foot in height is 
necessary. It should be noted that approximately 205 feet of the 
649-foot wall, or 31%, would be over 6 feet.  

 
The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
2. A variance is necessary to accommodate an unusual or atypical lot 

configuration, which makes a reasonable use of the property unreasonable 
without a variance. 

15



 
Staff Comment:  While the platted lot configuration is not unusual or atypical, the 

grade of the affected lots prevents usable backyard spaces if a 
retaining wall is not provided along the eastern boundary. 

   
The proposal does not comply with this criterion. 

 
3. Any difficulty or hardship constituting the basis for a variance shall not be 

created by the party seeking the variance, nor shall it be due to, or a result of 
the general conditions in the area. 
 
Staff Comment:  The applicant created the platted lots over the pre-existing 

condition of the site area. It should be noted that the approved 
subdivision plat included topography, an approved grading plan 
and civil construction plans, which accounted for the existing 
conditions and anticipated the need for a retaining wall.  

 
 The proposal does not meet this criterion.  

 
4. Granting the variance is necessary so that the building or structure can align 

with the prevailing location of other similar buildings or structures on the 
same block face. 

 
Staff Comment:     The variance is necessary to allow each lot to be buildable and 

to align with the prevailing block face as each lot is oriented to 
face 66th Avenue perpendicularly.  

  
 The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
5. Granting the variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and area 

neighborhood plans, or may achieve a better result in meeting the intent of the 
plan objectives than if the codes were strictly applied. 

 
  Staff Comment:  The variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

aligns with the approved Construction Drawings provided with 
the Preliminary and Final Plat of this subdivision. The following 
objectives of the Comprehensive Plan are met with this 
proposal: 

 Objective GC-1.1 Growth Management while minimizing 
impacts to the natural environment. 

 

16



         Staff Comment: 
 The wall significantly reduces the grading and 

disturbance impact into the Pumpkin Ridge Natural 
Area and Sheep Draw. 

 
Objective GC-1.6 Transitions to Parks and Open Lands: 
Ensure that new development abutting lands that is intended 
to remain undeveloped, such as parks, open lands, 
environmentally sensitive areas, and agricultural land with 
conservation easements, provides for transition in uses and 
intensity that mitigate impacts on these adjacent areas. 
 
 Staff Comment: 

The wall minimizes grading and vegetative disturbances 
in the Sheep Draw and Pumpkin Ridge Natural Area. 
The back yards of residential lots propose a low 
intensity use next to the natural areas. 

 
Objective GC-4.3 Infill Compatibility. Promote the use of site 
design and building architecture that is sympathetic to the 
surrounding area and enhances the desirable character and 
form of the neighborhood or area. 
 
 Staff Comment: 

The wall would maintain the existing vegetation, 
including large trees, as well as the existing topography 
of the Sheep Draw and Pumpkin Ridge Natural Area.  

 
Additionally, the wall stone color has been chosen to 
blend with the soil and rock color of the area surrounding 
the site, and the textured finish of the block visually 
blends the wall into the landscape. 

 
Objective NR-3.1 Protect Natural Features and View Sheds. 
Ensure that important natural features and view sheds are 
protected or enhanced as development occurs. 
 
 Staff Comment: 

The retaining wall would allow for existing topography, 
trees and understory vegetation to be protected in place. 

     
    The proposal complies with this criterion. 
 
 

17



Mandatory Criteria:  Development Code Section 18.22.040(g) 
In every instance where the Board grants a variance, there shall be a finding that: 
 
1.      The granting of such variance will not be of substantial detriment to the public interest 

or to adjacent property or improvements in such district in which the variance is sought, 
and will observe the spirit of the Code; and 

 
Staff Comment:  Staff believes that granting the requested variance would not 

negatively affect the neighboring properties.   
  
 The proposal complies with this criterion.   

 
2.     The strict application of the provisions of the Code would result in practical difficulties 

or unnecessary hardship inconsistent with the general purpose and intent of  the Code; 
or 

 
Staff Comment:  Strict adherence to the Code would result in the removal of 

usable rear yards of the platted lots and may create additional 
disturbances within the adjacent natural areas.  

      
 The proposal complies with this criterion. 

 
3.    There are exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions applying to the 

property involved or to the intended use or development of the property that do not 
apply generally to other properties or uses in the same zoning district. 
 

Staff Comment:  The site is bordered along its entire eastern edge by the Sheep 
Draw and Pumpkin Ridge Natural Area.  

  
 The existing intersection to the north, existing portion of 8th 

Street, and location of utilities determined the alignment of the 
new 66th Avenue. This alignment would make a large portion 
of the site unusable for residential lots without the requested 
retaining wall. 

 
The request complies with this criterion.  

 
 
 
 
 

18



F. PHYSICAL SITE CHARACTERISTICS 
 

1. SUBDIVISION HISTORY 
The subject area has undergone numerous subdivisions over the years with the first being 
H-P Greeley Subdivision, which divided the area into two (2) lots in 2001. The subject 
area was re-platted as part of the H-P Greeley, 5th Replat in 2017, which subdivided the 
northern lots into Lots 1, 2, and 3.  
 
In November 2019, the site was platted as part of Tract A of the City Center West 
Residential Subdivision, 1st Filing. In January 2020, the site was re-platted as part of the 
City Center West Residential Subdivision, 2nd Filing.  
 

2. HAZARDS 
Staff is unaware of any potential hazards that presently exist on the site. However, a 500-
year floodplain is located adjacent to the site to the east.  
 

3. WILDLIFE 
The surrounding site is located in an area of moderate ecological significance. A biologist 
report was provided by Blue Mountain Environmental Consulting, LLC with the 
Preliminary Plat of City Center West Residential Subdivision, Filing Number 2. While 
not directly related to the proposed wall, the report concluded that the subdivision project 
would have no effect on federally listed species.  
 

4. FLOODPLAIN 
The property is not located within a floodplain. However, the site is in close proximity to 
the 500-year floodplain to the east.  
 

5. DRAINAGE AND EROSION 
A drainage report and erosion and sediment control plan was approved alongside the City 
Center West Residential Subdivision, 2nd Filing. The report indicates that development 
runoff would be conveyed by street curb and gutter to inlets and storm line systems into 
the proposed detention/water quality ponds located throughout the site. Stormwater would 
be detained and released at or below historic 100-year rates into the Sheep Draw to the east 
of the subject area, which has been the historic outfall for the area. 
 

G. OVERLAY DISTRICTS 
The property is located within the Boomerang Development Concept Master Plan (DCMP) 
overlay. The Boomerang Master Plan Design Guidelines (Ordinance No. 57, 2005) [Case No. 
Z 3:05] was developed to establish a list of permitted uses within the C-H, I-L, and R-H zone 

19



district that would limit special review projects and to establish specific design criteria through 
the Design Guidelines that meet or exceed Development Code standards.  

 
H. PUBLIC NOTICE AND COMMENT 

Notification letters regarding the proposed variance were mailed to property owners within 
500 feet of the subject site and signs were posted on the property on August 18, 2020.  No 
comments have been received to date. 
 

I. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Based on the application received and the preceding analysis, the Zoning Board of Appeals 
finds that the requested variance from Section 18.52.035(d)(10)(c), to allow for a retaining 
wall with a maximum height of 12 feet, where the maximum wall height of 6 feet is allowed, 
complies with Section 18.22.040(f), Items 1, 4 and 5 and Section 18.22.040(g), Items 1, 2 and 
3 of the Development Code and, therefore, approves the request. 
 

J. ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment A – Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Site Plan 
Attachment C – Applicant Narrative 
Attachment D – Retaining Wall Photos 

20



6
3
rd

 A
v
e

8th St

6th St

6
3
rd

A
ve

5th St

6
9
th

 A
v
e

6th Street Rd

6
2
nd

A
ve

nu
e

C
t

3rd Street Rd

7th St

4th Street Rd

9th St

6
2
n
d
 A

v
e

6
9
th

 A
v
e

6
1

s
t
A

v e
n
u
e

C
t

6
1
s
t 
A

v
e

8
th

 S
t

10th St

4th St

621

613

707 609

613

617
700

714

620

624

603

710

6308

617

707

6300

6121606

616

6222

607

615

604

617

621

702

703

714

715

719

722
729

608

612

6306 6268

61016175
6297

6450

6310

6308

6086

6050

6104

6118

6136

6180
6200

6309

6268
6380 6268

62506380

6380

704

707

600

604

610

6213

608

612

713

717

6227

6200

6200

721

711

6380

616

620

6149

710

706

803

809

817

821

813

625

66086806 66086608

62266358
396

629463386348

6110

6806

700

719

716

6806

6623 6005

6380

6513
6525

6314

709

708

611

6316

6310

6315

61316223

6200

6213
716

712

6806

6307

6301

601

605

609

723

6201

66086608 66086806

6300

6302

604

620

624

722

603

607

611

615

6115

6220

706

718
719

703

6200

66206628

6342

6346

6344

705

713

717

712

708

720

711

715

723

6622

6109

6313

6616

6616

700
705

6914

6914

727 726

6242

6905

6205

6710 6632

6624

6105

612

608

616

702

706

710

714

718

603461046120
6132

6144 6121

6139

702

618

602

606

610

614

622

715

711

6260

6600

6533

6868

6601

6601

400

404

408

412

416

502

506

510

514

518

522

600

604

608

612

616

620

702

706

710

714

718

722

6642

6603

6600

6641

6602

6635

6624

707

711

715
719

723

727

731

735

748

744

740

736

732

728

724

716

712

745

741

737

733

729

725

721

717

713

709
705

701

627

623

619

615

611

607

603

517

513

509

505

501

415

411

407

403402

406

410

414

500

504

508

512

6825

6719
6607

6929

6931

Vicinity Map
CCW Retaining Wall Variance

0 0.150.075
Miles [

VAR2020-0014

20th St

21

hathawabr
Polygonal Line

hathawabr
Callout
Approximate location of proposed wall

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

22



WALL A

23

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



WALL A

24



 
 

Variance Request # VAR2020-0014 

1. A variance request is needed do to the height of the retaining wall on City Center West F2 

project. Retaining wall is essential to the development as it serves to stabilize major grading 

changes between adjacent lots and floodway 

2. Under Section 18.22.040 (f) 1-4 and (g)1-3 a variance request is being submitted for the reasons 

below: 

(F)1-4 *A variance is necessary to accommodate an unusual or atypical lot configuration which 

makes a reasonable use of the property unreasonable without a variance. 

*Granting the variance is necessary so that the building or structure can align with the prevailing 

location of other similar buildings or structures on the same block face. 

(G)1-3 *Granting a variance request will not be of substantial detriments to the public or 

adjacent property because retaining wall structure will be facing the floodway, furthermore it 

will serve as protection to both sides of the wall.  

* Because of steep grading changes on this area of the site, a retaining wall helps the 

development become more accessible and safer. 

 

25

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment C

scheffev
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

26



Attachment D – Retaining Wall Photos  

 

 

27

scheffev
Typewritten Text
Attachment D

scheffev
Typewritten Text

scheffev
Typewritten Text

scheffev
Typewritten Text

scheffev
Typewritten Text


	08.25.20 ZBA Agenda.pdf
	05.12.20 ZBA Minutes-Draft
	05.12.20 ZBA Minutes-Draft.pdf
	Citizen Input - Fred Otis
	Citizen Input - Susan Klemme

	VAR2020-0014 Final Staff Report - All Attachments Sized
	ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FUNCTION:
	Review the proposal for compliance with Chapter 18.22, Variances, of the City of Greeley Development Code and approve, approve with conditions, continue the application for future consideration, or deny the request.
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	Staff Comment:     The variance is necessary to allow each lot to be buildable and to align with the prevailing block face as each lot is oriented to face 66th Avenue perpendicularly.
	Staff Comment:  The variance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and aligns with the approved Construction Drawings provided with the Preliminary and Final Plat of this subdivision. The following objectives of the Comprehensive Plan are met wi...
	The proposal complies with this criterion.




